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State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes _no
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1 . Name' (indicate preferred name)

historic THE OXFORD DISTRICT CUSTOM HOUSE

snd/orcommon  The Isthmus

2. Location

strost & number 0 Hopkins Neck - e NOA fOr publidation

olty, town Eagton C e VHCHOYY OF Wlm 1st,

state Maryland sounty Talbot

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

— Siatrict — — OCCUpPled ——— agriculture — MUBSUM

X buliding(s) ..X_ private ~X. unoccupied . COmmercial — park

- StruCiure ____ both — WOTk in progress e Stucations) - private resnidence

— Site Public Acquisition Accessidie e SCTtRlnment — heligious

— Object —— I process — YOS resiricted — QOVETIMent — SeClantific
—~X. baing considersd — YOS Uhrestricted — idustriat — ENSPOratION
_not applicable X no — miiitary —_other: .

4. Owner of Pl'opeﬂy (give names and mailing addresaes of 3ll owners)

neme Estate of Rosemaxry Schofield, Mary a. Muaro, executor

e/o Talbot County Free Library
street & number 100 West Dover Street telephone no.: 410-822-4222

cfty, town Esston state and zip codeMaryland 21601

§. Location of Legal Description

courthouss, registry of deeds, etc. Talbot County Courthouse liber 423
strest& number 11 North Washington Street ' folio 529
¢ity, town Easton siate  MD

6. Representation In Existing =nistoricai surveys

Hte  wj

date —federsl o...oimte ___county ___ loca

depository for survey records .

W, town | ) state
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Section 7. Description

The building was used to carry out the official duties of Jeremiah Banning (1733 -
1798), first U.S. Customs Officer of the Oxford District, who was appointed to this
position by George Washington March 21,1791, It was reputedly constructed in the
17903 and was strategically located on his propexty, known as “The Isthmus” on Plain
Dealing Creek, providing Banning with a clear view of the shipping activities across the
Tred Avon River at the Port of Oxford. Itis a small frame structure, measuring 14’5” X
17'%” with the entry located on the shorter wall and a catslide roof covering both rooms
within, The building stands on at least eight brick piers and contains some original
elements. The exterior weatherboard and entrance were replaced in the mid-19® century.

The north and principal facade is one story tall and contains a four pancldooron

* the east side and a 4/4 pane sash window on the west. The puilding Stands on brick piers
that are exposed about 5”6 above grade. There arc three visible on each elevation. The
white pine weatherboard has an exposure of about 5 4” to 5 %”. Tts 6” comer boards are
applied over the weatherboards. The door comains twentieth century hardware, including

a reproduction thumb latch and iron knocker. The window has the male halves of cast

iron shutter hinges for a single shutter. The upper sash appears original and the Jower is a
later replacement. There is approximately a threc inch soffit exposed beneath the wide

overhanging wood shingle roof.

The east side has the same type siding as the front, three brick piers and an
asymimetrical gable. The northermost window is similar to that of the north facade while
the southerly window is a small one pane casement. The short back (south) wall contains
only one four pane casement window which formerly had a shutter. The west wall
contains a third casement in the same location as the east wall and a free standing brick
chimney containing one flue. There are large cedar trees and a cherry tree near the west
gable. . From the evidence within the building, it apparently had a fireplace on the west
gable, however, there is nothing above grade to indicate that it was in this location.

The interior of the building contains two rooms, onc on the north and the other on
the south. The north room is lit by the two larger windows with 4/4 sash. The east
~ window has both original sash. On the west wall is a mid-19” century mantel and opening
for a fireplace plus a patched hearth in the six inch wide yellow pine flooring. The mantel
is well exccuted for the period, with chamfered pilasters supporting a c¢hamfered frieze and
a bed molding consisting of two ovolo and one cavetto molding. The shelf edge is
finished with a cyma reversa molding. A beaded baseboard encircles the plasteréd room.
There is the ghost of a chair rail in the plaster at the level of the window sills. Both the
entry door and two windows have beaded trim which appears to date from the mid-19"
century, however the one interior doorway between the two rooms is earlier and wimmed
with a four inch wide beaded board with Greek ogee and bead backband. Both sides of
the doorway are trimmed similarly, except that there is a rabbet for a door which swung
into the south room.
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There is no access to the attic space in either the north or south room. The south
room has a combination of the same type six inch yellow pine as the north room and some
2 14" yellow pine. With the exception of some makeshift baseboard and a peg board on
the party wall, the rest of the room is plastered including the ceiling which slopes from
8°0” at the party wall to 6°6 1% at the south wall. The ceiling is less of an angle than the
roof. There is a three inch step up into the south room. None of the three casement
windows appear original, although the openings may be. -
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Section 8. Significance

In summary, the Oxford District Custom House and the Isthmus where it is located
are important for two reasons. This little building is one of four Custom Houses
1emaining from the days when Maryland was divided into several districts with Customs
Officers occupying offices in a number of makeshift buildings. On the Eastern Shore, the
one at Vienna is perhaps more closely related to this one than the one at Chestertown,
which was a large combination office, store and residence. The other reason for the
building and the farm being of importance is the fact that the possible builder of the
building and certainly the occupant of the farm, Jeremiah Banning, was an important figure
in Talbot County and the emerging nation during the late 18® century, along with being
designated the first Customs Officer of the Oxford District after the American Revolution
by President George Washington.

As described in #7 above, the Oxford District Custom house is a modest building

Houses remaining in the State of Maryland from the period before Customs was
centralized in Baltimore in the 19* century.

Construction of the building is attributed to Jeremiah Banning, who chose to place
it on’his own property rather than in the Town of Oxford apparently because he could not
easily travel across the river due to gout. Banning, born in 1733, was the oldest son of
Jane and James Banning. After his father’s death, his mother married Nicholas -
Goldsborough in 1746, At this time the property known as Isthmus became Jeremiah
Banning’s home and continued to be so until his own death in 1798, Consistent with his
step father’s affluence as a plantation owner, Banning was educated in the fundamentals
of language and the classics. He went 1o sea at the age of 18. His step father insisted that
Jeremiah spend a year as a clerk in an Oxford mercantile warchouse as part of his
professional training. He became a ship’s master at 22. In 1766 his stepfather died and
Mr. Banning assumed the duties as executor of Nicholas Goldsborough’s extensive
holdings, yet continued his life as a seafarer until 1773. Thereafter, Banning continued to
oversee the management of his inherited properties and served as agent for London
merchants on the Eastern Shore while gradually assuming many civic duties in support of
his community and the emerging new nation. In 1775, he was elected First Licutenant of
the militia. The following year he was appointed Major to the 27* Battalion of Militia as
well as assessor for Mill Hundred, Talbot County. In 1777, he was made a Magistrate of
Talbot County and in August of that year was elected Colonel of the 38 Battalion of
Militia. Still in that same year he was appointed Naval Officer of the Port of Oxford,
which pasition he held until his death. At the end of the war, the Maryland Assembly
appointed Colonel Banning a tax commissioner for Talbot County and authorized hini to.
sign paper money issued by the State Council. In 1787 Banning was one of four -
prominent citizens elécted to the General Assembly in Annapolis to ratify and confirm the
U.S. Constitution. His fellow representatives included: Robert Goldsborough, Edward
Lloyd , John Stevens. He became Chief Justice of the Orphans’ Court between 1780 and
1791. He served on the vestry of St. Michael’s parish and in 1785 was appointed
conunissioner for laying out the Town of Easton. Remaining a bachelor for life, he

J

™" that w3 reputedly Built in & 17905 by Jeremiah Banning. Tt'is onéof foiir Custom™ -~ - -~
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adopted three children: Robert, Freborn and Clementina who were born during the
Revolution. His son, Robert, took over his position as Customs Officer in 1795 after
paying the sum of two thousand dolars, as required for U.S. Senate confirmation of the
appointment, and served in this capacity until 1804, Jeremiah Banning died on December
23, 1798, leaving provisions in his will for freeing his 21 slaves. Both father and son are
buried at the Isthmus but the exact location of the graves is no lIonger know
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11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Michael Bourne, Easem;gt ggnisgraﬁo:

organization Maryland Historical tm#t o8 August 20, 1997
street & number 100 Community Place L telephone 410-514-7633

city of town Crownaville state m- zzngi g

" The Maryland Historic Sitas Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Sectiom 181 KA, 1974 supplenment.

The survey and inventory sre being prepared for information and \
record purposes only and do not comnstitute any infringement of
individual property rights, q y
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Survey No. T-549

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no
1. Name (indicate preferred name)
historic THE OXFORD DISTRICT CUSTOM HOUSE
and/or common The Isthmus
2. Location
street & number 6780 Hopkins Neck Road ' ____ not for publication
city, town Easton —vicinity of congressional district 1st.
state Maryland county Talbot
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district — public ____occupied ___ agriculture —___ museum
_X_puilding(s) _X_private —X_unoccupied ____ commercial __ park
— structure —__ both __ work in progress —_ educational ___ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment religious
- object —in process ____yes: restricted —___government —_ scientific
—X_ being considered ____yes: unrestricted industrial transportation
___not applicable _X no ____ military ____other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Estate of Rosemary Schofield, Mary a. Munro, executor

c/o Talbot County Free Library
street & number 100 West Dover Street ~ telephone no.: 410-822-4222
city, town Easton state and zip codeMaryland 21601

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Talbot County Courthouse liber 423
street & number 11 North Washington Street folio 529
city, town Easton state MD

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title N/A

date —federal ____state ____county ____local

epbsitory for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. T-549

Condition ) Check one Check one

. excellent _ deteriorated ____ unaitered X original site

X _good —___ruins _X_ altered __moved date of move
—— fair —_ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Oxford District Custom House was built on the farm called the Isthmus,
belonging to Jeremiah Banning, reputedly in the 1790s. It is a small frame
structure standing near the shore of Plaindealing Creek north of the town of
Oxford. It measures 14'5" X 17'3" with the entry located on the shorter wall
and a catslide roof covering both rooms within. The building stands on at
least eight brick piers and contains some original elements. The exterior
weatherboard and entrance were replaced in the mid-19th century.

-The north and principal facade is ome story tall and contains a four panel
door on the east side and a 4/4 pane sash window on the west. The building stands
on brick piers that are exposed about 5"6' above grade. There are three visible
on each elevation. The white pine weatherboard has an exposure of about 53" to
5 3/4", 1Its 6" corner boards are applied over the weatherboards. The door
contains twentieth century hardware, including a reproduction thumb latch and
iron knocker. The window has the male halves of cast iron shitter hinges for a
single shditter. The upper sash appears original and the lower is a later replace-
ment. There is approximately a three inch soffit exposed beneath the wide over-
hanging wood shingle roof.

The east side has the same type siding as the front, three brick piers and
an asymmetrical gable. The northernmost window is similar to that of the north
facade while the southerly window is a small one pane casement. The short back
(south) wall contains only one four pane casement window which formerly had a
shutter. . The west wall contains a third casement in the same location as the
east wall and a free standing brick chimney containing one flue. There are
large cedar trees and a cherry tree near the west gable. From the evidence
within the building, it apparently had a fireplace on the west gable, however,
there is nothing above grade to indicate that it was in this location.

The interior of the building contains two rooms, one on the north and the
other on the south. The north room is lit by the two larger windows with 4/4 sash.
The east window has both original sash. On the west wall is a mid-19th century
mantel and opening for a fireplace plus a patched hearth in the six inch wide
yellow pine flooring. The mantel is well executed for the period, with cham-
fered pilasters supporting a chamfered frieze and a bed molding consisting of
two ovolo and one cavetto molding. The shelf edge is finished with a cyma
reversa molding. A beaded baseboard encircles the plastered room. There is
the ghost of a chair rail in the plaster at the level of the window sills.

Both the entry door and two windows have beaded trim which appears to date from’
the mid-19th century, however the one interior doorway between the two rooms is
earlier and trimmed with a four inch wide beaded board with Greek ogee and '
bead backband. Both sides of the doorway are trimmed similarly, except that
there is a rabbet for a door which swung into the south room. :

There is no access to the attic space in either the north or south room.
The south room has a combination of the same type six inch yellow pine as the
north room and some 23" yellow pine. With the exception of some makeshift
"baseboard and a peg board on the party wall, the rest of the room is plastered,
including the ceiling which slopes from 8'0" at the party wall to 6'6}" at the
south wall. = The ceiling is less of an angle than the roof. There is a three
inch step up into the south room. None of the three casement windows appear
original, although the openings may be.



8. Significance | Survey No. T-549

Period Areas of Significance--Check and justify below
— prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
—-=1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic . conservation — law ___ science
- 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —__economics — literature — sculpture
__ 1600-1699 _X architecture __ education — military —_ social/
X _1700-1799 ___ art —_engineering —  music humanitarian
—X_1800-1899 _X commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
— 1900~ —_ communications —industry —_politics/government ___ transportation
—_invention —other (specify)
Specific dates ¢.1790s Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: __ A _ B _ ¢ _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _ D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: __national _ state __local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬁsral statement of history and
support.

In summary, the Oxford District Custom House and the Isthmus are important
for two reasons. This little building is one of four Custom Houses remaining
from the days when Maryland was divided into several districts with Customs
Officers occupying offices in a number of makeshift buildings. On the Eastern
Shore, the one at Vienna is perhaps more closely related to this one than the one
at Chestertown, which was a large combination office, store and residence. The
other reason for the building and the farm being of importance is the fact that
the possible builder of the building and certainly the occupant of the farm,
Jeremiah Banning, was an important figure in Talbot County during the 18th

atury, along with being designated the first Customs Officer of the Oxford
vistrict after the American Revolution by President George Washington.

As described in #7 above, the Oxford District Custom House is a modest
building that is reputedly built in the 1790s by Jeremiah Banning. It is one of
four Custom Houses remaining in the State of Maryland before Customs was
centralized in Baltimore in the 19th century.

Jeremiah Banning is attributed with the construction of the building on his
property rather than in Oxford because of his inability to travel easily across
the river. Gout apparently was the reason for not being able to get around
with ease. Col. Banning, born in 1733, was the oldest son of Jane and James
Banning. He was a mariner beginning at the age 18 in 1751 and continuing until
1773. Thereafter, he became a farmer and agent for London merchants on the
Eastern Shore. In 1775,he was elected first lieutenant of the militia. The
following year he was appointed Major to the 27th Battalion of Militia as well
as assessor Mill Hundred, Talbot County. 1In 1777, he was made a Magistrate of
Talbot County and in August of that year was elected Colonel of the 38th Battalion
of Militia. He was appointed naval officer of the Port of Oxford, which position
he held until his death in 1798 and for which the little office at the Isthmus
was constructed. He was Chief Justice of the Orphans' Court between 1780 and
1791. He served on the vestry of St. Michael's Parish and in 1785 was appointed
commissioner for laying out the fown of Easton. 1In 1787, he was chosen to
represeémt: “Talbot Counfy in a genereal convention held at Annapolis. He was
married and when he died, left three heirs. His son Robert Banning took over
his position as Customs Officer until he was replaced in 1804. Both father

~—d son are buried at the Isthmus in un-marked graves.
|
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Tilghman, Oswald,History of Talbot County Maryland, Vol. I, Re
Company, 1967, p. 325 ff.

gional Publishing

P eston “I(:ks() a Il)()l. oun A HlStO d wa b
3 3 3 3

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UTM References Jo NOT complete UTM references S e
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Zone Easting Northing ¥ Zone Easting Northing
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Verbal boundary déscription and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Michael Bourne, Easement Administrator

organization Maryland Historical trust date August 20, 1997
street & number 100 Community Place ' | télephbne 410-514- 7633
city or town Crowpsville state MD 21032

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST,
land Historical Trust ‘ﬁm CGMMUNW WAGE {
CROWNSVILLE, MD 21032-2093
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PS-2746



| .
g Ndﬂ 1147(3]01.095 at College Park

8601 Adelphi Road College Park, Maryland 20740-6001

September 25, 1997

Polly Shannahan
4364 Batchelors Point Road
Oxford, MD 21654

Dear Ms. Shaanahan:

This i8 in response to your telephone request today for the date of Jeremiah Benning’s
commission as a Customs Officer.

We examined the General Records of the Department of the Treasury (RG 56) and located his
commission (enclosed) in entry 234, Records of the Division of Appointments, Records Relating
to Presidential Appointments and Commissions, Commissions Issued to Major Treasury Officers
(“Presidential Appointments” , 1791-1909, Volume 6 of 37 (450/5 8/30/03). Also enclosed is a

| copy of the entry regarding the United States Customs Service in .&MGMM
- Manual, [996/1997.

Sincerely,

Dm0 G

WAYNE T. DE CESAR
Archivist
Archives Textual Reference

National Archives and Records Administration
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Office of the Comptrolier of the Currency

{Eor the Oﬁ‘l:eoflheCmpu'olhvdhCumcy
siaternent of organization, see the of
Regulations, Title 12, Pant 41 Cﬂd&- Fderat

Currency (OCC
25, 1863 (12 Stat,
the Department of the
primary mission is to regulaf
banks. OCC is headedregy the
Comptroller, who is appointed for a
year term by the President with the
advice and consent of the Senate. By
statute, the Comptroller also serves a
concurrent term as Director of the
Federal Deposit Insurance i
phrosiy pos rance Comporation
OCC regulates national banks by its
power 10 examine banks; approve or

Fwﬁnﬂnriﬂfumaﬁmeumdth

Corspumictions
Demnmom.muuy,zso:msw,w -

Divisior, Office of the Comptroller of the C.

deny applications for new bank chanters,
» OF mergers; take enforcement

action—such as bank closures—against
banks that are not in compliance with
faws and regulations; and issue rules,
regulations, and interpretations on
banking practices.

OCC supervises approximately 3,300
natio.nal banks, including their :un

vmes and overseas operations. Each
bank is examined annually through a
aationWide staff of approximately 2,400
supervised in 6 district

DC 20219, Phone, 202-874-4700.

United States Customs Service

fifth act of the first Congress
on fuly 31 1789 (1 Stat.

customs districts and authorized customs

ofticers to collect 185 0N £
wares, and merchandise im the
second act o the lirst ress

july 4, 1789 (T Stat, 24). Bureay of
Cu'%ﬁm's_was &stablished as a separa
agency under the Treasury sepmte
on Mgrch 3,1927 (19 LS.C, 2071) and,
effective August 1, 1973, was
;defi@:;eg the United States Customs

rvice reasul ment Order
165-—23(: of April 4?1 973,
ustoms Setvice enforces cu

and related laws and collects the Foms
revenue from imports. Customs also
administers the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended (19 U.S.C. 1654), and other
customs faws. Some of the
responsibilities that Customs is
speci'ﬁca'!‘?v charged with are:

. ——infterdicting and seizing contraband,
including narcotics and illegal drugs;

—assessing and collecting customs

duties, excise taxes, fees, and penalties
due on imported merchandise;

—~processing persons, carriers, cargo,
and mail into and out of the United g

—adrministering certain havigation
laws; and

~—detecting and apprehending persons
engaged in fraudulent practices designed
to circumvent customns and refated laws;
copytight, patent, and trademark
pmvgswns;guft:as; and markir:cgh
requiteme r imponted merchandise.

As the principal border enforcement
agency, Custm:hs' mission has been

over the years to assisting in

the administration and enfércemengt of
some 400 provisions of law on behalf of
more than 40 Government agencies,
Today, in addition to enforcing the Tariff
Act of 1930 and other customs statutes,
the Customs Service:

~—cocperates with other Fedetal
agencies and foreign governments in
Suppressing the traffic of illegal narcotics
and pomography; -
. —enforces exron contro! laws and
intercepts itlegal high-technology and
weapons exports;

—enforces reporting requirements of
the Bank Secrecy Act; and
—coflects international trade statistics.
Also, Customs enforces a wide range
of requitements to protect the pubtic,
such as auto safety and emission control
standards, radiation and radioactive
material standards; counterfeit monetary
instruments; flammable fabric
restrictions; animal and plant quarantine
requirements; and food, drug, and
hazardous substance prohibitions.
Custorms is extensively involved with
outside commercial and policy
organizations and trade assogiations, and
with international organizations and
foreign customs services, Customs is a
member of the multinational World
Customs Organization, the Cabinet
Committee to Combat Terrorism, and the
International Narcotics Control Program.
tn addition, Customs panticipates in and
supports the activities and programs of
varioys intemational organizations and
agreements, incliding the World Trade
_ Organization, the International Civil

Aviation Organization, and the
Organization of American States (OAS),

Headkuarters of the U.S. Customs
Service is located in Washington, DC,
under the supervision of the
Commissioner of Customs, wha is
appointed by the President and
confirmed by the Senate.

The 50 States, plus the Virgin slands
and Puerto Rico, are divided into 20
customs management center areas,
under which there are approximately
300 posts of entry,

The foreign field offices of the
Custorns Service are located in Bangkok,
Beijing, Bonn, Brussels, Caracas,
Hermasillo, Hong Kong, London,
Merida, Mexico City, Milan, Monterrey,
Montevideo, Ottawa, Panama City, Paris,
Rome, Seoul, Singapore, Tokyo, Vienna,
and The Hague. An attaché represents
U.S. Custorns in the U.S. Mission to the
European Communities in Brussels.

The Customs Service also operates a
Canine Enforcement Training Center at

front Royal, VA,

Customs Management Centers—U.S. Customs Service

District Officas Addrees Directer Tolephone
$40 ATBACRICHCIN0 mrememrnr SUKS 90, 610 S. Conal SL, ON0BGO. GETIEt O oo 226347
€00\ TeNaGMOUMED ... Sl 1200, 2223 5. Shaperd S, ot Robar Troer . 798-313-2841
Soutiem Caiomia/San Diego ... %ﬁg’i&?ﬁ.m&s@m Rudy UM i EVPESP-5485
No PUCACPOrENd oeve. R, 502, 511 MY, Broncivay, Poipnd,  Lois Fisld —.ve—omre.en S03-328-7625
0 PochelSan Franciao ... Suln 140782 New St Poul Ardrews oo 415-744-7700
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"‘,‘ - o ‘( 5

TO ALL WHO SHALL SEE THESE PRESENTS, GREETING.

K~ OW YE, That repofing fpecial Truft and Conﬁdence in the Integrity, thgcnce and _QAWI‘WM 0{ 5@\‘@ &

% T S I have nominated, and by and with the Advice and Confent of the

Senate, Do arroiNT him £ollecher ,for e stk o"- Gaofm\o(; ST . P DL

and do authorize and empower him to execute and fulfil the Duties of that Office according to Law ; AND T0 HAVE AND To HoLp the faid office, with
all the Rights and Emoluments thereunto legaily appmmmno, unto him the faid jm &amm% ~—+—during the Pleafure of the
Prefident of the Umted Statcs for thc Tunc bcmg. oo :

- . '(.h' . ‘

3.
e’

In Trstivony whereof I have caufed thefe Letsers 1o be made Patent, and the Seal of the United State: o 6eremxta aﬁixed

e
(&.s/) G1vex wnder my Hand, at the «&h& u‘ madd‘mcuw the gwwﬂy /‘Nﬁt 154)' of M\' “"’"' in the Year

of our Lord one thoufand feven bundred and ninety ome,, and of the Indipendence of the United States of America the

Cresde g ot 7 Sehoigie.

‘%J/ Me- Mman.,.

9 fffron.
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